

## CONSTITUTION.

---

1.—This Society shall be called the Seismological Society of Japan.

2.—The objects of this Society, shall be the furtherance of the study of, and the collection of facts on, all the phenomena connected with earthquakes and volcanoes.

3.—At the meetings of the Society papers on general science may be read, subject to the approval of the Society.

4.—This Society shall consist of Corporation, Honorary and Ordinary members.

5.—Honorary Members, who must be non-residents in Japan, shall be admitted on grounds to be determined by the Committee.

6.— }  
7.— } Cancelled.

8.—The annual subscription (eight yen) shall be due on January 1st.

9.—The Officers of the Society shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and five ordinary Members, two of whom shall be residents of Yokohama. These nine shall form the Committee, of whom four shall form a quorum. The Chairman of the Committee shall have a deciding vote.

10.—The affairs of this Society shall be managed by the Committee, who shall also decide on the papers to be published in the Transactions of the Society.

11.—General Meetings, due notice of which shall be given to the Members by the Secretary, shall be held at convenient dates in Tokio or Yokohama.

12.—The Officers of the Society shall be elected each year by ballot at an Annual Meeting.

13.—The Committee shall hold a Meeting one week before each General Meeting.

14.—At the Annual Meeting the Secretary and the Treasurer shall present their Reports.

15.—Any amendments to this constitution may be proposed at any General Meeting, and shall be considered at the next; when, if two-thirds of the Members are present, it shall be passed by a majority vote; if however two-thirds of the Members are *not* present, and the majority of those present are in favor of the amendment, it shall be considered at the succeeding Meeting, when, if a majority of those present are in favor of the amendment, it shall be adopted.

16.—The Secretary shall notify Members of proposed amendments to the constitution.

---

#### RULES ADOPTED BY THE COMMITTEE.

1.—Every paper shall be submitted to the Committee, either in full or abstract, before it is put on the list of the Society for public reading.

2.—Any person presenting a paper to the Society shall be required to state whether he intends to publish it elsewhere.

OFFICERS FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH,  
1881.

---

*President.*—J. Hattori, Esq.  
*Vice-President.*—Professor John Milne.  
*Secretary.*— „ W. S. Chaplin.  
*Treasurer.*—P. Mayet, Esq.  
*Members of Com-* { Professor T. C. Mendenhall.  
*mittee for Tokio.* { E. Knipping, Esq.  
                          { C. A. C. de Boinville, Esq.  
*For Yokohama.* { W. H. Talbot, Esq.  
                          { H. Pryer, Esq.

---

OFFICERS FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH,  
1882.

---

*President.*—J. Hattori, Esq.  
*Vice-President.*—Professor J. Milne.  
*Secretary.*— „ W. S. Chaplin.  
*Treasurer.*—P. Mayet, Esq.  
*Members of Com-* { Professor D. Kikuchi.  
*mittee for Tokio.* { Dr. E. Naumann.  
                          { O. Korschelt, Esq.  
*For Yokohama.* { Capt. F. Brinkley, R.A.  
                          { W. H. Talbot, Esq.

## LIST OF MEMBERS.

DECEMBER, 1881.

---

- Abella Y. Casariego, Inspector General of Mines, Manila.  
Arai, I., Tokio.  
Baelz, E., M.D., Tokio.  
Bair, M. M.,            "  
Bassnett, Thomas, Jacksonville, Florida, U.S.A.  
Bassnett, Mrs. T.,       "            "            "  
Beadon, R. J., Tokio.  
Beretta, Petro, Yokohama.  
Beukema, T. W., M.D., Yokohama.  
Biagioni, Francisco,            "  
Bissett, J., London.  
Blackiston, Capt. T. W.  
Bolton, Prof. H. C., Hartford, Ct., U.S.A.  
Brinkley, Capt F., R.A., Yokohama.  
Brown, Capt. A. R., Tokio.  
Browne, H., St. John, Kobe.  
Brush, Prof. C. J., New Haven, Ct., U.S.A.  
Cappelletti, C. V., Tokio.  
Carcano, Count Silvio, Yokohama.  
Casati, Luigi, Tokio.  
Chamberlain, B. H., Tokio.  
Chambers, John, C.E.,        "

- Chaplin, W. S., Tokio.  
Chiossone, E.,        "  
Conder, Josiah,       "  
Cox, W. D.,           "  
Cox, Prof. E. T., San Francisco, Cal., U.S.A.  
Dan, T., Tokio.  
Dell 'Oro, Giuseppe, Yokohama.  
Divers, E., M.D., Tokio.  
Döderlein, Dr. L.,   "  
Dyer, Henry,         "  
Eickmann, Dr. J. F., Tokio.  
Eisendecker, H.E. C. v., "  
Eldridge, S., M.D., Yokohama.  
Elgar, F., London.  
Ewing, J. A., Tokio.  
Fenollosa, E. F., Tokio.  
Fukuoka, T., Tokio.  
Furuichi, K.,        "  
Futami, K.,          "  
Gordon, T. W., M.D., Georgetown, Ohio, U.S.A.  
Goto, Tokio.  
Gowland, W., Osaka.  
Gray, Thomas, Glasgow.  
Groom, A. H., Hiogo.  
Hamao, A., Tokio.  
Harkness, Prof. Wm., Washington, D.C., U.S.A.  
Harrman, Mrs. E., New York City, U.S.A.  
Hattori, J., Tokio.  
Hawes, A. G. S., R.M., Tokio.  
Hiraoka,             "  
Holtham, E. G., C.E., Hiogo.  
Irwin, R. W., Tokio.  
Isawa, S.,            "  
Iwasa, Y.,            "  
James, J. M., Shinagawa.

- Kanda, N., Tokio.  
Kato, H., „  
Kennedy, J. G., Tokio.  
Kikuchi, D., Tokio.  
Knipping, E., „  
Kochibe, T., „  
Korschelt, O., „  
Kudo, S., Sapporo.  
Kuki, R., Tokio.  
Kuwabara, M., Tokio.  
Lyman, B. S., Northampton, Mass., U.S.A.  
MacCarthy, J. W., London.  
Martin-Lanciareez, E., Tokio.  
Mayet, P., „  
Mendenhall, Prof. T. C., Columbus, Ohio, U.S.A.  
Milne, John, Tokio.  
Miyaki, H., Tokio.  
Mori, Y., Kamaishi.  
Nakamura, K., Tokio.  
Nakashima, N., „  
Namura, T., „  
Naumann, Dr. E., „  
Nembrini, C., „  
Netto, C., „  
Nishi, M., „  
Omori, S., Tokio.  
Osborne, A. O., Waterville New York, U.S.A.  
Palmer, Major, R. E., Hongkong.  
Paton, George, Tokio.  
Paul, H. M., „  
Pryer, H., Yokohama.  
Ringer, E., Nagasaki.  
Rodwell, Prof. G. F., Marlborough Coll., Wiltshire, England.  
Roretz, Dr. A. v., Yamagata.  
Satow E. M., Tokio.

Schütt, O., Tokio.  
Sekiya, K., „  
Shinagawa, Y., Tokio.  
Snow, H. J., Yokohama.  
Strange, F. W., Tokio.  
Stone, W. H., „  
Struve, H.E. Ch. de, Tokio.  
Sugi, K., „  
Talbot, W. H., Yokohama.  
Tappan, Prof. E. T., Gambier, Ohio, U.S.A.  
Toda, W., Tokio.  
Tomita, T., „  
Tsuda, S., „  
Tuttle, Prof. A. H., Columbus, Ohio, U.S.A.  
Uriu, T., Tokio.  
Van Buren, Gen. T. B., Yokohama.  
Van der Pot, H.E. J. J., „  
Verbeck, Rev. C. F., Tokio.  
Wada, K., Tokio.  
Wada, Y., „  
Wagener, Dr. G., Tokio.  
Wolff, A., Yokohama.  
Yamagawa, K., Tokio.  
Yamashita, D., „  
Yatabe, W., „

